TUCSON, ARIZONA

Supp. No. 101 – Instruction Sheet

Enclosed with this instruction sheet are new and replacement pages for your loose-leaf copy of the Code, bringing the Code current through September 30, 2013. In order to keep your copy of the Code up to date, you must remove the following indicated obsolete pages from your Code and replace them with the indicated revised pages. The current revision number appearing on the lower left corner of each page revised in this package is "Supp. No. 101" If you have any questions, please contact American Legal Publishing at 1-800-445-5588.

Remove from Code Add to Code	Remove from Code Add to Code
Title Page, ii Title Page, ii	CHAPTER 19: LICENSES AND PRIVILEGE TAXES
TABLE OF CONTENTS	
xxvii, xxviii xxvii, xxviii	1691, 1692
CHECKLIST OF UP-TO-DATE PAGES	
[1] – [4] [1] – [4]	CHAPTER 20: MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC
CHAPTER 6: BUILDINGS, ELECTRICITY, PLUMBING, AND MECHANICAL CODE	1817 – 1820 1817 – 1820
	CODE COMPARATIVE TABLE
455, 456 455, 456 CHAPTER 8: CITY COURT	3802.19, 3802.20 3802.19, 3802.20
	CODE INDEX
677 - 680677 - 680	
	3819, 3820

TUCSON, ARIZONA Supp. No. 101 – Instruction Sheet

CONTAINING THE CHARTER AND GENERAL ORDINANCES CITY OF TUCSON, ARIZONA
Adopted, October 19, 1964 Effective, January 20, 1965
Published by Order of the Mayor and Council
Republished 1987
Contains Supplement No. 101 Current through September 30, 2013

Published by:

AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CORPORATION

432 Walnut Street \$\diamoldot\text{Suite } 1200 \$\diamoldot\text{Cincinnati, Ohio } 45202

1-800-445-5588 \$\diamoldot\text{ www.amlegal.com}

The "Tucson Code" is compiled from public records in the office of the City Clerk and is not copyrighted.

Supp. No. 101 ii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapte	r		Page
		Div. 4. Liquor and Vending Machine License	
		Tax	1709
		Div. 5. Tax on Hotels Renting to Transients	1711
		Div. 6. Tax on Secondhand Dealers and	
		Pawnbrokers	. 1712.3
	Art. II.	Privilege and Excise Taxes	1713
		Div. 1. General Conditions and Definitions	
		Div. 2. Determination of Gross Income	
		Div. 3. Licensing and Recordkeeping	
		Div. 4. Privilege Taxes	
		Div. 5. Administration.	
		Div. 6. Use Tax.	
		Regulations – Privilege and Excise Taxes	
	Art. III.	Public Utility Tax	
	AII. III.	Div. 1. General Conditions and Definitions	
		Div. 2. Determination of Gross Income	
		Div. 3. Licensing and Recordkeeping	
		Div. 4. Public Utility Tax	
		Div. 5. Administration	
	Art. IV.	Access to Care Program	1788
20.	Motor Veh	icles and Traffic.	1791
	Art. I.	In General.	
	Art. II.	Administration.	
	1110.11.	Div. 1. Generally	
		Div. 2. Violations.	
	Art. III.	Pedestrians.	
	Art. IV.	Traffic-Control Devices.	
	Art. IV.		
		Operation	
	Art. VI.	One-Way Streets and Stop Streets	
	Art. VII.	Stopping, Standing and Parking	
		Div. 1. Generally	
		Div. 2. Administration	1826
		Div. 3. Parking for Individuals with Physical	
		Disabilities	
		Div. 4. Basic Parking Controls	
		Div. 5. Nuisance Parking Controls	1831
		Div. 6. Safety Issues	1835
	Art. VIII.	Taxicab Regulations	1838
	Art. IX.	Trolleys	
	Art. X.	Soliciting Employment, Business or Contributions	
	1210, 121	From Occupants of Vehicles	1841
21	Doules and 1	Daguartian	1077
21.		Recreation	
	Art. I.	Operation and Regulation of Parks	
	Art. II.	City Municipal Golf Courses	
	Art. III.	Reserved.	
	Art. IV.	Gene Reid Park Zoo Admittance Fees	
	Art. V.	Reserved	1903

Chapt	er		Page
22.	Pensions.	Retirement, Group Insurance, Leave Benefits and	
		rance Benefits	1953
	Art. I.	In General.	
	Art. II.	Social Security	
	Art. III.	Tucson Supplemental Retirement System	1060
	AII. III.		
		Div. 1. Types of Retirement and Benefits	1000
	A . TT.7	Div. 2. Administration of the System	. 1980.2
	Art. IV.	Group Insurance and Medical Health Plans	
	Art. V.	Leave Benefit Plan	
	Art. VI.	Other Insurance Benefits	1993
23.	Land Use	Code	2025
22.4	D 1		2202
23A.		nent Compliance Code	
	Art. I.	General Provisions	
		Div. 1. Introduction	
		Div. 2. Mapping	2208
	Art. II.	Review Procedures	2208
		Div. 1. General Zoning Review Procedure	2208
		Div. 2. Special Zoning Review – Limited	
		Notice Procedure	2220
		Div. 3. Special Zoning Review – Full Notice	
		Procedure	2222
		Div. 4. Appeal Procedures	
	Art. III.	Impact Fees.	
	AII. III.	Div. 1. Applicability and Intent	
		Div. 2. Fee Calculation	
		Div. 3. General Provisions	
	Art. IV.	Definitions	
		Div. 1. General Provisions	
		Div. 2. Listing of Words and Terms	2245
23B.	Unified D	evelopment Code	2301
24.	Sawaraga	and Sewage Disposal	2383
∠4.	Art. I.	General and Administrative.	2201
		Connection Fees	
	Art. III.	User Fees.	2388
	Art. IV.	Industrial Waste Control and Industrial Cost	
		Recovery Program	2393
25.	Streets an	d Sidewalks	2453
	Art. I.	Repairs and Improvements in Public	
		Rights-of-Way	2455
	Art. II.	Duties and Prohibitions.	
	Art. III.	Address Numbering.	
	Art. IV.	Underground Utility Districts	
	Art. IV.	Temporary Work Zone Traffic Management	
	/N.I.I. V .	ECHIODIALY WOLK AOHO FIAHIO MAHAYSHISHI	∠ + /)

Checklist of Up-to-Date Pages

(This checklist will he updated with the printing of each Supplement)

From our experience in publishing Looseleaf Supplements on a page-for-page substitution basis, it has become evident that through usage and supplementation many pages can be inserted and removed in error.

The following listing is included in this Code as a ready guide for the user to determine whether the Code volume properly reflects the latest printing of each page.

In the first column all page numbers are listed in sequence. The second column reflects the latest printing of the pages as they should appear in an up-to-date volume. The letters "OC" indicate the pages have not been reprinted in the Supplement Service and appear as published for the original Code. When a page has been reprinted in the Supplement Service, this column reflects the identification number or Supplement Number printed on the bottom of the page.

In addition to assisting existing holders of the Code, this list may be used in compiling an up-to-date copy from the original Code and subsequent Supplements.

Page No.	Supp. No.	Page No.	Supp. No.
Title page, ii	101	53 – 55	12
iii - xiv	OC	105, 106	47
XV	3	115, 116	OC
xvii – xix	30	117, 118	77
xxi - xiv	99	119, 120	98
xxv, xxvi	100	167, 168	92
xxvii, xxviii	101	171, 172	91
xxix, xxx	99	173, 174	92
1, 2	47	175 - 180.2	100
3 - 7	25	181 - 184	83
8.1, 8.2	18	185 - 188	94
9, 10	OC	229 - 240	100
11, 12	25	241 - 244	80
13 - 14.1	47	245, 246	100
15, 16	25	247, 248	94
17 - 20	45	249 - 280	100
21 - 22.1	47	281 - 330	80
23 - 28	OC	331 - 334.2	98
29, 30	18	335 - 340.3	71
31, 32	25	341, 342	40
33, 34	45	343, 344	64
35 - 38.1	18	345 - 350	92
39 - 44	OC	395 - 398	75
45 - 48	78	447, 448	94
49, 50	OC	449, 450	98
51	18	450.1 - 450.4	94

Supp. No. 101 [1]

Page No.	Supp. No.	Page No.	Supp. No.
451, 452	OC	851, 852	33
453, 454	25	853	8
455, 456	101	855, 856	31
457 – 460	98	857 – 862	91
461 – 463	81	864 – 866	81
511 – 518	95	867, 868	94
519, 520	24	869, 870	93
521 – 522.2	69	871, 872	97
523, 524	79	875, 876	90
525, 526	73	877 - 880	88
527, 528	90	881 - 884	95
529, 530	91	917 – 919	83
531, 532	90	967	39
532.1 - 532.8	88	1063, 1064	100
533 - 536.2	66	1065, 1066	90
537 - 540	OC	1067, 1068	95
541, 542	19	1069, 1070	67
543, 544	26	1071 - 1074.2	90
545, 546	90	1074.3, 1074.4	44
547, 548	90	1074.5, 1074.6	99
548.1	74	1074.7, 1074.8	44
549, 550	26	1075, 1076	49
550.1, 550.2	81	1077 - 1078.1	78
550.3 - 552	88	1079 - 1080.4	62
553 - 562.3	81	1081–1084.2	100
563 - 566	37	1085 - 1090	80
567, 568	46	1091, 1092	21
569 – 592	95	1093, 1094	67
597 – 618	39	1095 - 1098	86
619, 620	99	1145 - 1147	65
621 – 634	39	1167 - 1169	83
651	63	1189 – 1192	91
653 – 664	31	1193 – 1194.1	86
665, 666	64	1195 - 1200	79
667 – 672	75 42	1203, 1204	20
673	42	1205 – 1210	78
674.25 – 674.30	40	1211 – 1214	91
675, 676	96	1259 – 1262 1307 – 1310	84
677 – 680	101	1307 – 1310	98
681, 682	81	1311 – 1313	78
683 – 686	92	1361 – 1772 1450 – 1462	91 96
731 – 733 783 – 784	11	1459 – 1462 1463 – 1466 2	96
783, 784 785 – 790	83 81	1463 – 1466.2 1467 – 1470	99
783 – 790 791 – 794	83	1467 – 1470 1471 – 1482	100
791 – 794 795, 796	100	1471 – 1482 1483 – 1486	99
793, 790 797, 798	96	1527 – 1530	95
797, 798 799 – 808	100	1531–1546	89
845, 846	95	1547, 1548	90
847, 848	93 97	1548.1 – 1552	98
017, 010	<i>)</i>	10.10.1 1002	70

Supp. No. 101 [2]

CHECKLIST OF UP-TO-DATE PAGES

Page No.	Supp. No.	Page No.	Supp. No.
1553 – 1556	97	1791, 1792	93
1556.1, 1556.2	95	1793, 1794	95
1557, 1558	83	1795 – 1802	99
1559 – 1562	89	1802.1 - 1802.8	78
1563 – 1568	95	1803, 1804	22
1579, 1580	100	1805, 1806	40
1581 - 1588.1	77	1806.1	63
1589 - 1592	46	1807, 1808	89
1593 – 1598	100	1809 - 1814	86
1643 - 1648	92	1814.1 - 1816	95
1691, 1692	101	1817 - 1820	101
1693, 1694	94	1825 - 1832	93
1695 - 1698	101	1833 - 1836	99
1699 - 1704	88	1837 - 1840	93
1705 - 1708	79	1841, 1842	80
1708.1, 1708.2	81	1877, 1878	96
1709, 1710	98	1879, 1880	61
1711 – 1712.4	97	1881 - 1882.1	77
1713, 1714	94	1883, 1884	73
1715 – 1718	93	1885, 1886	74
1718.1, 1718.2	94	1887 – 1896.2	96
1719 – 1722 1723 – 1724	66	1897 – 1900 1901 - 1902	67
1723, 1724	94	1901, 1902	87
1725 – 1730 1731 - 1732	79 83	1903, 1904	96 87
1731, 1732 1733 – 1734.2	94	1953 – 1958 1950, 1960	97
1735 – 1734.2 1735 – 1744.4	93	1959, 1960 1961 – 1966	99
1745, 1746	93 87	1967 – 1966 1967 – 1972	92
1746.1 – 1746.2	77	1973 – 1972	97
1746.3 – 1746.6	81	1981 – 1984	83
1747, 1748	56	1985, 1986	96
1749 – 1752.2.4	74	1987 – 1990	83
1752.2.5, 1752.2.6	77	1991 – 1994	100
1752.3, 1752.4	87	2025, 2026	99
1752.5, 1752.6	54	2203 - 2208.2	99
1753 – 1762.2	93	2209 - 2212	83
1763 – 1766	61	2213 - 2214.1	86
1766.1, 1766.2	74	2215 - 2226	83
1766.3, 1766.4	79	2227 - 2232.1	86
1766.5, 1766.6	87	2233 - 2244	83
1766.7 - 1766.10	94	2245 - 2248	99
1767, 1768	37	2283 - 2284.1	43
1769, 1770	36	2301, 2302	99
1771 - 1772.2	94	2385 - 2402	OC
1773, 1774	36	2403, 2404	35
1775 - 1778.1	67	2453 – 2454.1	69
1779, 1780	5	2455, 2456	35
1781 – 1784	79	2457 – 2461	69
1785, 1786	83	2463, 2464	27
1787 - 1790.2	101	2465 – 2466.2	34

Supp. No. 101 [3]

Page No.	Supp. No.	Page No.	Supp. No.
2467, 2468	OC	3802.3 - 3802.8	81
2469, 2470	26	3802.9, 3802.10	83
2471 – 2472.1	51	3802.11, 3802.12	88
2473, 2474	27	3802.13, 3802.14	92
2475 – 2477	69	3802.15, 3802.16	96
2525 - 2538.2	75	3802.17, 3802.18	99
2539 - 2546	71	3802.19, 3802.20	101
2547 - 2550.1	75	3803 - 3818	45
2551 - 2558	71	3819, 3820	101
2615, 2616	96	3820.1, 3820.2	95
2617, 2618	90	3821, 3822	100
2619, 2620	92	3823, 3824	84
2621 – 2640	100	3825, 3826	100
2640.1, 2640.2	96	3827, 3828	95
2641 – 2652	92	3829 – 3832	100
2652.1, 2652.2	100	3833, 3834	95
2653 – 2658	90	3835, 3836	100
2695 – 2698 2690 – 2710	99	3837, 3838	91
2699 – 2710 2711 – 2712 2	78 100	3839, 3840	95
2711 – 2712.2 2713 – 2714.1	100	3841, 3842 3843, 3844	99 98
2713 – 2714.1 2715 – 2726	83 78	3843, 3844 3845, 3846	100
2727 – 2744	78 99	3847, 3848	101
2749, 2750	67	3849, 3850	100
2751 – 2754	16	3850.1, 3850.2	99
2755 – 2762	68	3851 – 3854	94
2763 – 2767	67	3855, 3856	90
2801	34	3857, 3858	95
2803	81	3859, 3860	100
3699 – 3752	OC	3861, 3862	99
3753 - 3758	4	3863, 3864	100
3759, 3760	6	3864.1, 3864.2	95
3761, 3762	9	3865, 3866	92
3763, 3764	11	3867 - 3870	100
3765, 3766	14	3871, 3872	95
3767, 3768	18	3873, 3874	99
3769, 3770	16	3875, 3876	96
3771, 3772	18	3877 - 3880.2	100
3773, 3774	19	3881, 3882	92
3775, 3776	23	3883, 3884	100
3777 - 3780	27	3885, 3886	99
3781, 3782	31	3887, 3888	90
3783, 3784	36	3889, 3890	96
3785, 3786	39	3891, 3892	100
3787, 3788	44		
3789, 3790 3701, 3702	51 54		
3791, 3792 3703 3800	54 60		
3793 – 3800 3801, 3802	69 70		
3802.1, 3802.2	76 75		
3002.1, 3002.2	15		

Supp. No. 101 [4]

tion of and approve or condemn all buildings or structures within the jurisdiction of the city, control types and classes of material and the method, manner and workmanship for the construction and repair of buildings and structures, approve or disapprove the use of building materials or devices, inspect public and private premises for violations of the provisions of this chapter 6 and of such other portions of the Tucson Code as the building safety administrator may direct, give notice of defects in construction and repair, alterations or changes of buildings and structures, receive applications for issuing permits or building construction repairs, alterations or changes, collect and account for fees, examine and approve plans and specifications for proposed building construction, repairs, alterations or changes and advise on necessary changes in such plans and specifications, certify to compliance with plans and specifications on building work, make such reports as shall be required from time to time by the building safety administrator, and make any recommendations to the building administrator which the building inspection supervisor may deem practical and desirable. (Ord. No. 5531, § 2, 3-22-82)

Sec. 6-34. Building code adopted.

The document entitled "International Building Code, 2012 Edition" published by the International Code Council, with local amendments, a copy of which amendments are attached to Ordinance No. 11042 as Exhibit "A" are hereby adopted.

(Ord. No. 5331, § 2, 3-22-82; Ord. No. 5771, § 1, 5-23-83; Ord. No. 6567, § 1, 11-10-86; Ord. No. 7179, § 1, 4-24-89; Ord. No. 7792, § 1, 4-13-92; Ord. No. 8607, § 1, 1-2-96; Ord. No. 9155, § 1, 11-2-98; Ord. No. 9491, § 1, 11-20-00; Ord. No. 9526, § 4, 3-19-01; Ord. No. 10035, § 1, 9-7-04; Ord. No. 10142, § 2, 4-12-05; Ord. No. 10417, § 2, 6-12-07; Ord. No. 10625, § 1, 1-13-09; Ord. No. 11042, § 1, 12-18-12, eff. 1-2-13)

Editor's note – Exhibit A is not printed herein but is on file in the office of the city clerk and available for public inspection during regular business hours.

Sec. 6-35. Clerk to keep copies of building code.

Three (3) copies of the building code adopted in section 6-34 shall be filed in the office of the city clerk and are made public records and shall be available for public use and inspection during regular office hours. (Ord. No. 5531, § 2, 3-22-82)

Sec. 6-36. Amendments to building code.

The building code adopted in section 6-34 may be amended from time to time by the mayor and council. Three (3) copies of current ordinances amending the building code shall be kept on file by the city clerk as public records and shall be kept available for public use and inspection during regular office hours.

(Ord. No. 5531, § 2, 3-22-82; Ord. No. 10035, § 3, 9-7-04)

Sec. 6-37. Applicability of administrative and building codes.

Every new building and structure erected in or moved into the jurisdiction of the city after June 30, 1992, shall conform to the applicable requirements of the Building Safety Administrative Code adopted in section 6-1 and as amended, and to the requirements of the building code adopted in section 6-34 and as amended. All additions, alterations, repairs, changes of use or occupancy in all buildings or structures within the jurisdiction of the city shall conform to the applicable requirements of the Building Safety Administrative Code adopted in section 6-1 and as amended, and to the requirements of the building code adopted in section 6-34 and as amended, applicable to new buildings, except as specifically provided for therein. Every building and structure existing in the city after June 30, 1992, shall conform to the requirements of the building code adopted in section 6-34 and as amended, which expressly or necessarily require that they apply to such existing buildings and structures, and to the requirements of the Building Safety Administrative Code of the city, adopted in section 6-1 and as amended, applicable to existing buildings. (Ord. No. 5531, § 2, 5-23-83; Ord. No. 5771, § 2, 5-23-83; Ord. No. 6000, § 1, 4-23-84; Ord. No. 6567, § 2, 11-10-86; Ord. No. 7179, § 2, 4-24-89; Ord. No. 7792, § 2, 4-13-92)

Sec. 6-38. Residential code adopted.

The documents entitled "International Residential Code, 2012 Edition" published by the International Code Council, with local amendments, a copy of which amendments are attached to Ordinance No. 11042 as Exhibit "B" are hereby adopted.

(Ord. No. 9491, § 2, 11-20-00; Ord. No. 9526, § 5, 3-19-01; Ord. No. 9813, § 2, 2-10-03; Ord. No. 10035, § 2, 9-7-04; Ord. No. 10142, § 1, 4-12-05; Ord. No.

§ 6-38 TUCSON CODE

10417, § 3, 6-12-07; Ord. No. 10579, § 2, 9-23-08; Ord. No. 10605, § 1 (Exh. A), 11-25-08; Ord. No. 11042, § 2, 12-18-12, eff. 1-2-13; Ord. No. 11089, § 1 (Exh. A), 7-9-13)

Editor's note – Exhibit B is not printed herein but is on file in the office of the city clerk and available for public inspection during regular business hours.

Sec. 6-39. Reserved.

Sec. 6-40. Energy conservation code adopted.

The document entitled the "International Energy Conservation Code, 2012 Edition" with local amendments, a copy of which amendments are attached as Exhibit "C" to Ordinance No. 11042 are hereby adopted.

(Ord. No. 9491, § 3, 11-20-00; Ord. No. 9813, § 4, 2-10-03; Ord. No. 10178, § 1, 7-6-05; Ord. No. 10417, § 4, 6-12-07; Ord. No. 11042, § 3, 12-18-12, eff. 1-2-13)

Editor's note – Exhibit C is not printed herein but is on file in the office of the city clerk and available for public inspection during regular business hours.

Secs. 6-41-6-65. Reserved.

DIVISION 2. EXISTING BUILDING CODE*

Sec. 6-66. Existing building code adopted.

The documents entitled "International Existing Building Code, 2012 Edition" published by the International Code Council, with local amendments, a copy of which amendments are attached to Ordinance No. 11042 as Exhibit "D" are hereby adopted.

(Ord. No. 10436, § 2, 7-10-07; Ord. No. 11042, § 4, 12-18-12, eff. 1-2-13)

Editor's note – Exhibit D is not printed herein but is on file in the office of the city clerk and available for public inspection during regular business hours.

Secs. 6-67 – 6-70. Reserved.

DIVISION 3. RESERVED[†]

Secs. 6-71-6-80. Reserved.

ARTICLE IV. ELECTRICITY[‡]

DIVISION 1. ELECTRICAL CODE**

Sec. 6-81. Electrical inspection supervisor – Office created.

The office of electrical inspection supervisor is established. The electrical inspection supervisor shall be responsible to an under the authority of the building safety administrator.

(Ord. No. 5442, § 2, 9-28-81)

Sec. 6-82. Same – Qualifications; assistants.

No person shall be appointed electrical inspection supervisor who shall not possess the required minimum qualifications for that position as expressed in the position classification plan of the city. The electrical inspection supervisor shall be assisted by electrical inspectors who possess the required minimum qualifications for their respective positions as are expressed in the position classification plan of the city. The electrical inspection supervisor may from time to time delegate to his assistants such of his authority as is necessary or desirable.

(Ord. No. 5442, § 2, 9-28-81)

^{*}Editor's note – Prior to the reenactment of Div. 2 by Ord. No. 10436, Ord. No. 9816, § 1, adopted February 24, 2003, repealed Div. 2, §§ 6-66 – 6-68, and enacted similar provisions set out in §§ 16-12, 16-14 and 16-20 – 16-28. Former Div. 2 pertained to the dangerous buildings code. See the Code Comparative Table.

[†]**Editor's note** – Ord. No. 9816, § 2, adopted February 24, 2003, repealed Div. 3, §§ 6-71 – 6-73, and enacted similar provisions set out in new §§ 16-11 and 16-12. Former Div. 3 pertained to the housing safety code. See the Code Comparative Table.

 $[\]ddagger$ Editor's note – Ord. No. 5155, § 1, adopted May 27, 1980, repealed ch. 6, art. IV, §§ 6-82 – 6-111, derived from Ord. No. 4688, § 2, adopted August 1, 1977; Ord. No. 4836, § 3, adopted June 26, 1978; § 2 enacted a new art. IV, §§ 6-81 – 6-98. Subsequently, § 2 of Ord. No. 5338, adopted April 6, 1981, designated §§ 6-81 – 6-100 as "Division 1. Electrical Code" of art. VI. Section 3 added new §§ 6-101 – 6-113 as div. 2. Subsequently, § 1 of Ord. No. 5442, adopted September 28, 1981, repealed div. 1, §§ 6-81 – 6-98; and § 2 added a new div. 1, §§ 6-81 – 6-87.

^{**}Cross reference – Technical division of administrative hearing office to have exclusive jurisdiction over alleged violations of electrical code, § 28-4(1).

CITY COURT § 8-2.1

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL*

Sec. 8-1. Jurisdiction, powers, duties.

- (a) There shall be a city court which shall be the municipal court for the city, to be known and designated as "The City Court of the City of Tucson, Pima County, State of Arizona". It shall have and exercise the jurisdiction conferred upon it by the Charter and the Code of the city. It shall exercise exclusive original jurisdiction of all proceedings of a criminal nature for the violation of the Charter or of any ordinance of the city, and of every action of any nature for the enforcement of a penalty, or the recovery of a penalty or forfeiture imposed by any ordinance of the city for the violation thereof or for neglect to perform any duty by any ordinance imposed or for a violation of a civil traffic ordinance and of every action for the collection of any license fee, fine or penalty due from any person to the city and required to be paid or which is due and collectible under the ordinances of the city.
- (b) The city court shall further have jurisdiction over all actions alleging civil violations or civil infractions of this Code.
- (c) The city court shall further have concurrent jurisdiction with justices of the peace over all violations of the laws of the state committed within the limits of the city. The court shall also have jurisdiction of violations of the Charter and ordinances of the city committed on land owned or leased by the city, whether contiguous or noncontiguous, lying without the corporate limits thereof, to the same extent and with like effect as if the violation occurred within the corporate limits of the city, provided that the land is

signed as provided in subsection B of A.R.S. section 9-401.

(1953 Code, ch. 9A, § 1; Ord. No. 5930, § 1, 12-19-83; Ord. No. 7887, § 2, 8-3-92)

Cross reference – Authority of city to exercise jurisdiction over land owned or leased outside city. § 1-7.

Sec. 8-2. Appointment of magistrates; several powers, duties.

There shall be appointed a sufficient number of magistrates as determined by the mayor and council. Each magistrate shall exercise powers and duties as provided by the Charter and Code of the city and the constitution and laws of the state in such cases made and provided.

(1953 Code, ch. 9A, §§ 2, 3, 4; Ord. No. 1956, §§ 1, 3, 9-8-59; Ord. No. 2529, § 1, 10-14-63; Ord. No. 4679, § 2, 6-27-77; Ord. No. 5169, § 1, 6-16-80; Ord. No. 7733, § 2, 12-9-91)

Charter reference – Term of office of magistrate, ch. XII, 8 3

Sec. 8-2.1. Methods of appointment of magistrates and qualifications; establishing senior special magistrate status and compensation.

- (a) There shall be a nonpartisan merit selection commission known as the magistrate merit selection commission on magistrate appointments composed of four (4) attorney members appointed by the county bar association, not more than two (2) of whom shall be of the same political party, and five (5) non-attorney members, three (3) of whom shall be selected by members of the governing body who represent the political party in the majority, and two (2) of whom shall be selected by members of the governing body who represent the political party in the minority. Of the five (5) non-attorney members not more than three (3) shall be of the same political party. None of the attorney or non-attorney members of the commission shall hold any other elective or appointive public office or be a member of law enforcement, and no attorney member shall be eligible for appointment to the office of magistrate until one (1) year after ceasing to be a member of the commission. All members shall serve four (4) year terms.
- (b) For the purpose of conducting the business of the commission, a quorum shall consist of five (5) members.

^{*}Editor's note – Ord. No. 7733, adopted Dec. 9, 1991, extensively revised this article by amending certain sections, by repealing certain sections, and by renumbering certain sections. The editor has retained the history note as it appeared prior to the renumbering and has included a note giving the former section number.

Section 10 gave an effective date of $\S\S\ 2-7$ as the effective date of the intergovernmental agreement between the city and the county superior court attached to Res. No. 15893. Section 1 of Ord. No. 7756, adopted Jan. 13, 1992, changed the number of the resolution to Res. No. 15917.

§ 8-2.1 TUCSON CODE

- (c) Within ninety (90) days from the occurrence of a vacancy in the office of magistrate or at the request of mayor and council, the commission shall recommend to the mayor and council the names of not more than three (3) persons in ranked order to fill the position of magistrate or satisfy such request. Any such candidate shall be:
 - (1) Of good moral character;
 - (2) A resident of Arizona for one (1) year immediately preceding recommendation; and
 - (3) Admitted to the practice of law for five (5) years immediately preceding recommendation.

In addition to other relevant materials and the results of the biennial judicial performance review, where a sitting magistrate seeks a new appointment the commission shall consider the magistrate's courtroom administrative performance, as evidenced by matters including but not limited to case aging, case load, time to rule on matters under advisement and rulings reversed/affirmed on appeal to the extent any such measures do not conflict with judicial independence; and the magistrate's adherence to the city's rules of conduct and code of ethics to the extent adherence is not inconsistent with the Code of Judicial Conduct. The presiding magistrate of the city court shall perform a written annual review of each magistrate's performance measured by these criteria.

- (d) No later than nine (9) months prior to the expiration of the term, a magistrate may apply for reappointment in writing to the mayor and council. Upon such notice, the magistrate merit selection commission shall review the term of the magistrate and submit a written report of its findings to the mayor and council, which shall include a recommendation as to the reappointment. Such report shall be submitted at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration of the term. Upon expiration of the magistrate's term, the mayor and council may reappoint the magistrate, or may appoint a successor in accordance with the procedures set forth herein.
- (e) A regular magistrate who completes a term in office prior to January 15, 2012 and does not seek reappointment enters senior special magistrate status. The presiding judge of the city court may call a senior

special magistrate to serve temporarily as needed; such senior special magistrates shall be compensated (without benefits) at the same hourly rate as regular city magistrates then serving.

(Ord. No. 4815, § 1, 5-22-78; Ord. No. 4866, § 1, 8-7-78; Ord. No. 4919, § 1, 12-18-78; Ord. No. 7305, § 1, 11-6-89; Ord. No. 7513, § 1, 11-19-90; Ord. No. 8189, § 1, 2-7-94; Ord. No. 8254, § 1, 4-25-94; Ord. No. 8569, § 1, 9-5-95; Ord. No. 8767, § 1, 10-21-96; Ord. No. 9086, § 1, 7-6-98; Ord. No. 10062, § § 1, 2, 10-11-04; Ord. No. 10952, § 1, 12-20-11, eff. 1-1-12)

Sec. 8-2.2. Appointment of special magistrates; terms of office; compensation; powers; duties; qualifications.

- (a) Upon recommendation of the presiding judge of the Pima County Superior Court and subject to the appointment procedures set forth by the presiding judge, the mayor and council may appoint special magistrates, as needed, to assist in the timely adjudication of city court cases. Special magistrates shall serve a four (4) year term of office, and may be reappointed.
- (b) The compensation of a special magistrate during the four (4) year term of appointment is fixed at the rate of one hundred twenty five dollars (\$125.00) for each morning, afternoon or evening session of court at which the special magistrate sits; provided, however, that such special magistrate shall receive no more compensation than would be paid to a regular magistrate each month.
- (c) The powers and duties of a special magistrate shall be the same as those of a regular magistrate and shall extend beyond the period of appointment for the purpose of hearing and determining any proceeding necessary for a final determination of a cause heard by the special magistrate in whole or in part during the period of appointment.
- (d) Any such candidate for special magistrate shall possess the qualifications for a magistrate set forth in Tucson Code section 8-2.1(c).
- (e) Subject to the nomination and appointment procedures set forth in section 8.2.1(a), mayor and council shall appoint construction special magistrates possessing a demonstrated experience and familiarity of not less than five (5) years in contract and

CITY COURT § 8-4

construction law to hear and decide cases arising under Tucson Code section 11-38. The compensation for such construction special magistrates shall be as set forth in subsection (b) above.

(Ord. No. 7887, § 3, 8-3-92; Ord. No. 8835, § 1, 3-3-97; Ord. No. 8943, § 1, 9-8-97; Ord. No. 9158, § 3, 11-9-98; Ord. No. 9973, § 1, 5-17-04; Ord. No. 10063, § 1, 10-11-04; Ord. No. 10952, § 2, 12-20-11, eff. 1-1-12; Ord. No. 11111, § 1, 9-24-13, eff. 10-1-13)

Sec. 8-2.3. Appointment of limited special magistrates; term; powers; duties; qualifications; compensation.

- (a) Subject to the appointment procedures set forth in section 8-2.1, the mayor and council may appoint limited special magistrates to provide for the expeditious enforcement of civil violations and civil infractions of the Tucson Code and civil traffic violations under state law. Limited special magistrates shall be full time, shall serve a four-year term of office, and may be reappointed.
- (b) Limited special magistrates shall have concurrent jurisdiction with regular and special magistrates to hear and decide actions alleging civil violations or civil infractions of the Tucson Code and civil traffic violations under state law, and shall assume all duties referenced in the Tucson Code as being the responsibility of an administrative hearing officer.
- (c) At the time of appointment, limited special magistrates must have demonstrated experience or familiarity with administrative proceedings, technical codes or traffic law.
- (d) The compensation to be received by limited special magistrates shall be as set from time to time by the mayor and council and shall include the same fringe benefits as provided to regular magistrates. (Ord. No. 7887, § 4, 8-3-92; Ord. No. 8179, § 1, 1-3-94; Ord. No. 9398, § 1, 6-12-00; Ord. No. 10063, § 2, 10-11-04)

Sec. 8-2.4. Criminal history records check prior to appointment of city magistrates.

(a) Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1750, the City of Tucson is hereby authorized to receive criminal history record information for the purpose of evaluating the fitness of current and prospective city court magistrates.

(b) Each person who seeks to be appointed as a regular, special, or limited special city court magistrate shall, as part of such appointment application process, furnish a full set of fingerprints to the city.

- (c) Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1750 and Public Law 92-544, the city shall submit such fingerprints accompanied by the appropriate fees, which will be paid by the city, to the Arizona Department of Public Safety and the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the purpose of obtaining criminal history record information on all individuals identified in Section 1, subpart B. Such information shall be used only for the purpose of evaluating the fitness of such current and prospective city court magistrates.
- (d) The city shall comply with any relevant State and Federal rules and regulations that may relate to the dissemination of such criminal history record information.

(Ord. No. 9085, § 1, 7-6-98)

Sec. 8-2.5. Justices of the peace, weekend arraignments, initial appearances and conflict cases.

Any justice of the peace, upon assuming office, is appointed as a special magistrate of the city for the specific purpose of presiding over arraignments, initial appearances and any conflict case(s) designated by the presiding magistrate of the Tucson city court involving any state law or city ordinance.

(Ord. No. 9971, § 1, 5-17-04; Ord. No. 10155, § 1, 5-24-05; Ord. No. 10996, § 1, 6-19-12, eff. 7-1-12)

Sec. 8-3. Conducting business on nonjuridical days.

City court shall always be open except on nonjuridical days. On such nonjuridical days, it may transact business within its jurisdiction. (1953 Code, ch. 9A, §§ 2, 3; Ord. No. 1956, § 2, 9-8-59; Ord. No. 4679, § 3, 6-27-77; Ord. No. 7733,

Sec. 8-4. Magistrates; powers and duties.

§ 3, 12-9-91)

Each magistrate of the city court, in addition to exercising such judicial authority as provided in the Charter and Code of the city and the laws of the state shall:

§ 8-4 TUCSON CODE

- (1) Devote his or her entire time to the duties of being a magistrate and shall not engage in the private practice of law.
- (2) Observe, be available, and be present in attendance upon the court for the transaction of business every juridical day between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. In addition to such hours, a magistrate may open court and be in attendance at the court during such additional hours of any juridical or nonjuridical day as may be necessary for the discharge or disposition of business properly coming before the court.
- (3) Dispose with all reasonable promptness all matters taken under advisement and, in any event, issue a decision no later than twenty (20) days thereafter.
- (4) Issue a minute entry of the court's judgment in all matters wherein disposition was based upon legal grounds rather than upon the factual merits of the matter, specifying therein the legal conclusion underlying the court's judgment.
- (5) Follow and adhere to supervision by the presiding judge of the superior court as provided for in Arizona Supreme Court Administrative Order 93-30, and any amendment or successor to this provision.
- (6) Follow and adhere to the city's rules of conduct and code of ethics contained in administrative directive 2.02-5 and 2.02-14 and any amendments or successors to these provisions to the extent adherence to these provisions does not affect judicial independence or is not inconsistent with the Code of Judicial Conduct.

(Ord. No. 4679, § 12, 6-27-77; Ord. No. 5169, § 3, 6-16-80; Ord. No. 7733, § 4, 12-9-91; Ord. No. 10062, § 3, 10-11-04)

Editor's note – Ord. No. 4679, § 1, adopted June 27, 1977, specifically amended the Code by repealing former § 8-5, which had pertained to office hours and had been derived from the 1953 Code, ch. 9A, § 5. Section 12 of Ord. No. 4679 added a new § 8-5 as hereinabove set out. The section was renumbered § 8-4 and the text amended by § 4 of Ord. No. 7733.

Sec. 8-4.1. Authorizing assignment of an associate presiding magistrate, term, compensation, duties.

- (a) There is hereby created one administrative assignment position of Presiding Magistrate of the City Court of the City of Tucson whose function it is to assist the presiding judge of the superior court in performing administrative duties associated with the judicial and non-judicial functions of the city court.
- (b) The presiding judge of the superior court is hereby authorized to appoint, in his or her sole discretion, any sitting city magistrate to the administrative assignment position of presiding magistrate.
- (c) Any sitting city magistrate selected for assignment to the position of presiding magistrate shall serve at the pleasure of the presiding judge of the superior court, and may be removed from the administrative assignment of presiding magistrate at any time, for any reason, without cause and without right of appeal by the presiding judge of the superior court.
- (d) While performing the administrative assignment of presiding magistrate, a city magistrate shall receive additional compensation in the amount of ten (10) percent of his or her annual salary, payable on a biweekly basis, pro-rated.
- (e) The presiding magistrate shall perform those duties as required by law and this chapter and as assigned by the presiding judge of the superior court. (Ord. No. 9042, § 1, 4-13-98; Ord. No. 10062, § 4, 10-11-04; Ord. No. 10454, § 1, 9-25-07)

Sec. 8-5. Duty to fix bond, bail, fines, penalties, fees and assessments.

The city magistrates shall fix all bonds, bail, fines, penalties, fees and other assessments which are now or hereafter may be provided by law.

(1953 Code, ch. 9A, § 6; Ord. No. 4679, § 4, 6-27-77; Ord. No. 7733, § 7, 12-9-91)

Note – Formerly, § 8-6. Renumbered § 8-5 by § 7 of Ord. No. 7733.

Chapter 19

LICENSES AND PRIVILEGE TAXES*

Art. I.	Occupational License Tax, §§ 19-1 – 19-98
	Div. 1. General Provisions, §§ 19-1 – 19-38
	Div. 2. Employee Based Occupational License Tax, §§ 19-39 – 19-41
	Div. 3. Swap Meet Proprietors, Outdoor Vendors, and Special Event
	Occupational License Tax, §§ 19-42 – 19-50
	Div. 4. Liquor and Vending Machines License Tax, §§ 19-51 – 19-65
	Div. 5. Tax on Hotels Renting to Transients, §§ 19-66 – 19-98
Art. II.	Privilege and Excise Taxes, §§ 19-99 – 19-660
	Div. 1. General Conditions and Definitions, §§ 19-99 – 19-130
	Div. 2. Determination of Gross Income, §§ 19-200 – 19-290
	Div. 3. Licensing and Recordkeeping, §§ 19-300 – 19-370
	Div. 4. Privilege Taxes, §§ 19-400 – 19-480
	Div. 5. Administration, §§ 19-500 – 19-595
	Div. 6. Use Tax, §§ 19-600 – 19-660
	Regulations – Privilege and Excise Taxes, Regs. 19-100.1 – 19-571.1
Art. III.	Public Utility Tax, §§ 19-699 – 19-1120
	Div. 1. General Conditions and Definitions, §§ 19-699, 19-700
	Div. 2. Determination of Gross Income, §§ 19-800 – 19-890
	Div. 3. Licensing and Recordkeeping, §§ 19-900 – 19-970
	Div. 4. Public Utility Tax, §§ 19-1000 – 19-1080
	Div. 5. Administration, §§ 19-1100 – 19-1120
Art. IV.	Access to Care Program, §§ 19-1200 – 19-1255

Article I. Occupational License Tax

Division 1. General Provisions

Sec. 19-1.	Definitions.
Sec. 19-2.	License required.
Sec. 19-3.	Issuance by tax collector; contents.
Sec. 19-4.	When taxes due.
Sec. 19-5.	Prorating quarterly taxes.
Sec. 19-6.	When taxes delinquent; penalty and interest applied.
Sec. 19-7.	Time, place of payment generally.
Sec. 19-8.	Mistake not to prevent collecting correct amount.
Sec. 19-9.	Notice of termination of business required.
Sec. 19-10.	Imposition of license tax; evidence of engaging in business.
Sec. 19-11.	Right of entry of tax collector, revenue investigators, police; arrest authority.
Sec. 19-12.	Appointment of revenue investigators; general duties.
Sec. 19-13.	Tax collector, revenue inspectors to file complaints.
Sec. 19-14.	Separate licenses required for separate places of business.
Sec. 19-15.	Licenses to be displayed; exhibition upon demand.
Sec. 19-16.	When certificate or permit from health department required.
Sec. 19-17.	Exemption for businesses engaged in interstate commerce or whom conduct
	business solely with the United States Government.
Sec. 19-18.	Conviction, punishment for failing to have license not to excuse non-payment of tax.
Sec. 19-19.	Suspension and revocation.
Sec. 19-20.	Application for license; information required.

^{*}Cross references – Licensing of fortunetellers, § 7-62 et seq.; regulation and licensing of going-out-of-business, fire, etc., sales, § 7-80 et seq.

State law references – License taxes generally, A.R.S. § 42-1101 et seq.; luxury privilege taxes, § 42-1201 et seq.; transaction privilege taxes, § 42-1301 et seq.

Sec. 19-21.	Rules and Regulations authorized; approval; filing; copies required.
Sec. 19-22. Sec. 19-23.	Exemption for low business volume. Administrative review; petition for hearing or for redetermination; hearing or
	redetermination; finality of order.
Sec. 19-24.	Civil actions.
Sec. 19-25.	Collection of taxes when there is succession in and/or succession of business interest.
Sec. 19-26.	Successor in interest exemptions.
Sec. 19-27.	Penalty – Failure to provide number of employees information.
Sec. 19-28.	Limitation periods.
Sec. 19-29.	Discount for timely advance annual payment of taxes.
Sec. 19-30.	Other provisions.
Sec. 19-31.	General administration and enforcement.
Sec. 19-32.	Director of finance to keep records.
Sec. 19-33.	Refund of prepaid license taxes.
Secs. 19-34 – 1	9-38. Reserved.
	Division 2. Employee Based Occupational License Tax
Sec. 19-39.	Application fee, annual license fee, annual renewal requirements, penalty.
Sec. 19-40.	Exemptions for occupations paying other taxes.
Sec. 19-41.	Occupational license tax schedule.
	Division 3. Swap Meet Proprietors, Outdoor Vendors, and Special Event
	Occupational License Tax
Sec. 19-42.	Swap meet proprietors, street fair vendors, and trade show dealers.
Sec. 19-43.	Promoter.
Sec. 19-44.	Peddlers.
Sec. 19-45.	Ice cream truck vendors.
Secs. 19-46 – 1	9-50. Reserved.
	Division 4. Liquor and Vending Machine License Tax
Sec. 19-51.	Imposition – Liquor license tax.
Sec. 19-52.	Quarterly – Liquor license fee schedule.
Sec. 19-53.	Applications.
Sec. 19-54.	Vending machines license fees.
Sec. 19-55.	Business privilege license tax.
Secs. 19-56 – 1	9-65. Reserved.
	Division 5. Tax on Hotels Renting to Transients
Sec. 19-66.	Tax imposed; nature and source of transient rental occupational license tax.
Sec. 19-67.	Registration.
Sec. 19-68.	Determination of rent based upon method of reporting.
Sec. 19-69.	Exclusion of vendor issued coupons and rebates from rental income.
Sec. 19-70.	Exclusion of combined taxes from rent; itemization; notice; limitations.
Sec. 19-71.	Licensing requirements.
Sec. 19-72.	Special licensing requirements.
Sec. 19-73.	Licensing; duration of license; transferability; display.
Sec. 19-74.	Licensing: cancellation; revocation.
Sec. 19-75. Sec. 19-76.	Operating without a license.
Sec. 19-76.	Recordkeeping requirements. Recordkeeping; claim of exclusion, exemption, deduction, or credit;
500. 17-11.	documentation; liability.
Sec. 19-78.	Inadequate or unsuitable records.
Sec. 19-79.	Administration.
	9-84. Reserved.

LICENSES AND PRIVILEGE TAXES

Sec. 19-640. Sec. 19-650.	Use tax: credit for equivalent excise taxes paid another jurisdiction. Use tax: exclusion when acquisition subject to use tax is taxed or taxable elsewhere in this chapter; limitation.
Sec. 19-660.	Use tax: exemptions.
	Regulations – Privilege and Excise Taxes
Reg. 19-100.1.	Brokers.
Reg. 19-100.2.	Delivery, installation, or other direct customer services.
Reg. 19-100.3.	Retailers.
Reg. 19-100.4.	Out-of-city/out-of-state sales: Sales to Native Americans.
Reg. 19-100.5.	Remediation contracting.
Reg. 19-110.1.	Reserved.
Reg. 19-110.2.	Reserved.
Reg. 19-115.1.	Computer hardware, software, and data services.
Reg. 19-120.1.	Food for home consumption: Recordkeeping and reporting requirements.
Reg. 19-200.1.	When refundable deposits are includable in gross income.
Reg. 19-250.1.	Excess tax collected.
Reg. 19-270.1.	Proprietary activities of municipalities are not considered activities of a
D 10.050.0	governmental entity.
Reg. 19-270.2.	Proprietary clubs.
Reg. 19-300.1.	Who must apply for a license.
Reg. 19-300.2.	Reserved. Proration of initial annual license fee.
Reg. 19-310.1. Reg. 19-310.2.	Reserved.
Reg. 19-310.2.	Reserved.
Reg. 19-350.1.	Recordkeeping: Income.
Reg. 19-350.1.	Recordkeeping: Expenditures.
Reg. 19-350.3.	Recordkeeping: Out-of-city and out-of-state sales.
Reg. 19-360.1.	Proof of exemption: Sale for resale; sale, rental, lease, or license of rental
Č	equipment.
Reg. 19-360.2.	Proof of exemption: Exemption certificate.
Reg. 19-405.1.	Reserved.
Reg. 19-405.2.	Advertising activity within the city.
Reg. 19-407.1.	Reserved.
Reg. 19-415.1.	Distinction between the categories of construction contracting.
Reg. 19-415.2.	Distinction between construction contracting and certain related activities.
Reg. 19-415.3.	Construction contracting; tax rate effective date.
Reg. 19-416.1.	Speculative builders: Homeowner's bona fide nonbusiness sale of a family residence.
Reg. 19-416.2.	Reconstruction contracting.
Reg. 19-425.1.	Distinction between job printing and certain related activities.
Reg. 19-435.1. Reg. 19-435.2.	Distinction between publishing of periodicals and certain related activities. Advertising income of publishers and distributors of newspapers and other
Reg. 17-433.2.	periodicals.
Reg. 19-445.1.	When the rental, leasing, and licensing of real property is exempt as "casual."
Reg. 19-445.2.	Reserved.
Reg. 19-445.3.	Rental, leasing, and licensing of real property as lodging: Room and board;
8	furnished lodging.
Reg. 19-447.1.	Reserved.
Reg. 19-450.1.	Distinction between rental, leasing, and licensing for use of tangible personal
	property and certain related activities.
Reg. 19-450.2.	Rental, leasing, and licensing for use of tangible personal property: Membership
	fees; other charges.
Reg. 19-450.3.	Rental, leasing, and licensing for use of equipment with operator.
Reg. 19-450.4.	Rental, leasing, and licensing for use of tangible personal property: Semi-
Dog 10 450 5	permanently or permanently installed tangible personal property.
Reg. 19-450.5.	Rental, leasing, and licensing for use of tangible personal property: Delivery, installation, repair, and maintenance charges
Reg. 19-455.1.	installation, repair, and maintenance charges. Gratuities related to restaurant activity.
Reg. 19-455.1. Reg. 19-460.1.	Distinction between retail sales and certain other transfers of tangible personal
100.17	property.

1695 Supp. No. 101

Reg. 19-460.2. Reg. 19-460.3. Reg. 19-460.4. Reg. 19-460.5. Reg. 19-465.1. Reg. 19-465.2. Reg. 19-465.3. Reg. 19-465.4. Reg. 19-470.1. Reg. 19-475.1. Reg. 19-520.2. Reg. 19-555.1.	Retail sales: Trading stamp company transactions. Retail sales: Membership fees of retailers. Retail sales: Professional services. Retail sales: Monetized bullion; numismatic value of coins. Retail sales: Consignment sales. Retail sales: Repair services. Retail sales: Warranty, maintenance and similar service contracts. Retail sales: Sale of containers, paper products, and labels. Retail sales: Aircraft acquired for use outside the state. Telecommunication services. Distinction between transporting for hire and certain related activities. Reports made to the city. Change of method of reporting. Administrative request for the attendance of witnesses or the production of documents; service thereof; remedies and penalties for failure to respond. Collection of tax in jeopardy.
	Article III. Public Utility Tax
	Division 1. General Conditions and Definitions
Sec. 19-699. Sec. 19-700.	Words of tense, number and gender; Code references. General definitions.
	Division 2. Determination of Gross Income
Sec. 19-800. Sec. 19-805.	Determination of gross income in general. Exclusion from gross income of amounts derived from activities other than public utility business activities.
Sec. 19-810.	Determination of gross income – Transactions between affiliated companies or persons.
Sec. 19-820.	Same – Artificially contrived transactions.
Sec. 19-830. Sec. 19-840.	Same – Based upon method of reporting. Exclusion of cash discounts, returns, refunds, trade-in values, vendor-issued
Sec. 19-640.	coupons, and rebates from gross income.
Sec. 19-850.	Exclusion of combined taxes from gross income; itemization; notice; limitations.
Sec. 19-870.	Exclusion of gross income of persons deemed not engaged in business.
Sec. 19-890.	Exclusion of certain activities occurring on Davis Monthan Air Force Base from the measure of gross income.
	Division 3. Licensing and Recordkeeping
Sec. 19-900.	Licensing requirements.
Sec. 19-905.	Special licensing requirements.
Sec. 19-910.	Licensing – Duration of license; transferability; display.
Sec. 19-920.	Same – Cancellation; revocation.
Sec. 19-930.	Operating without a license.
Sec. 19-950. Sec. 19-960.	Recordkeeping requirements. Recordkeeping; claim of exclusion, exemption, deduction, or credit;
	documentation; liability.
Sec. 19-970.	Inadequate or unsuitable records.
	Division 4. Public Utility Tax
Sec. 19-1000.	Imposition of public utility tax; credit; presumption.
Sec. 19-1070. Sec. 19-1080.	Telecommunication services. Utility services.
DOO. 17 TOOU.	C 11111 1 DOI 1 100D.

LICENSES AND PRIVILEGE TAXES

Division 5. Administration

Sec. 19-1100.	Administration of this article
Sec. 19-1110.	Criminal penalties.
Sec. 19-1120.	Civil actions.

Article IV. Access to Care Program

Sec. 19-1200.	Legislative intent.
Sec. 19-1201.	Definitions.
Sec. 19-1205.	Creation of access to care fund.
Sec. 19-1210.	Imposition of access to care tax and rate.
Sec. 19-1215.	Collection of tax.
Sec. 19-1220.	Use of access to care tax fund.
Sec. 19-1225.	Transfer to AHCCCS.
Sec. 19-1230.	No impact on patients or payers.
Sec. 19-1235.	Requirements for implementation.
Sec. 19-1240.	Termination.
Sec. 19-1245.	Impact of termination or recoupment.
Sec. 19-1250.	Interest and penalties.
Sec. 19-1255.	Examination of books and records; failure to provide records.

- (6) Fail or refuse to remit any tax collected by such person from his customer to the tax collector before the delinquency date next following such collection.
- (7) Advertise or hold out to the public in any manner, directly or indirectly, that any tax imposed by this article, as provided in this article, is not considered as an element in the price to the consumer.
- (8) Fail or refuse to obtain a public utility license or to aid or abet another in any attempt to intentionally refuse to obtain such a license or evade the license fee.
- (9) Reproduce, forge, falsify, fraudulently obtain or secure, or aid or abet another in any attempt to reproduce, forge, falsify, or fraudulently obtain or secure, an exemption from taxes imposed by this article.
- (b) The violation of any provision of subsection (a) above shall constitute a class two misdemeanor.
- (c) In addition to the foregoing penalties, any person who shall knowingly swear to or verify any false or fraudulent statement, with the intent aforesaid, shall be guilty of the offense of perjury and on conviction thereof shall be punished in the manner provided by law.

(Ord. No. 6926, § 1.B, 4-18-88)

Sec. 19-1120. Civil actions.

- (a) Liens.
- (1) Any tax, penalty or interest imposed under this article which has become final, as provided in this article, shall become a lien when the city perfects a notice and claim of lien setting forth the name of the taxpayer, the amount of the tax, penalty and interest, the period or periods for which due, the date of accrual thereof, and stating that the city claims a lien therefor.
- (2) The notice of claim of lien shall be signed by the tax collector under his official seal of the city, and, with respect to real property, shall be recorded in the office of the county recorder of any county in which the taxpayer

- owns real property, and, with respect to personal property, shall be filed in the office of the secretary of state. After the notice and claim of lien is recorded or filed, the taxes, penalties and interest in the amounts specified therein shall be a lien on all real property of the taxpayer located in such county where recorded, and all tangible personal property of the taxpayer within the state, superior to all other liens and assessments recorded or filed subsequent to the recording or filing of the notice and claim of lien.
- (3) Every tax imposed by this article, and all increases, interest and penalties thereof, shall become from the time the same is due and payable a personal debt from the person liable to the city, but shall be payable to and recoverable by the tax collector and which may be collected in the manner set forth in subsection (b) below.
- (4) Any lien perfected pursuant to this section shall, upon payment of the taxes, penalties and interest affected thereby, be released by the tax collector in the same manner as mortgages and judgments are released. The tax collector may, at his sole discretion, release a lien in part, that is, against only specified property, for partial payment of moneys due the city.
- (b) Actions To Recover Tax. An action may be brought by the city attorney or other legal advisory to the city designated by the city council, at the request of the tax collector, in the name of the city, to recover the amount of any taxes, penalties and interest due under this article; provided that:
 - No action or proceeding may be taken or commenced to collect any taxes levied by this article until the amount thereof has been established by assessment, correction or reassessment; and
 - (2) Such collection effort is made or the proceedings begun:
 - a. Within six (6) years after the assessment of the tax; or

§ 19-1120 TUCSON CODE

- b. Prior to the expiration of any period of collection agreed upon in writing by the tax collector and the taxpayer before the expiration of such six-year period, or any extensions thereof; or
- c. At any time for the collection of tax arising by reason of a tax lien perfected, recorded or possessed by the city under this section.

(Ord. No. 6926, § 1.B, 4-18-88)

ARTICLE IV. ACCESS TO CARE PROGRAM

Sec. 19-1200. Legislative intent.

This article is adopted for the purpose of promoting the health, safety and general welfare of the residents of the city of Tucson by:

- (a) establishing a funding source for the non-federal share of Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) payments to acute care hospitals within the city of Tucson that provide significant amounts of uncompensated care to uninsured and low income patients;
- (b) establishing a funding source for the nonfederal share of the cost of an expansion of coverage through the AHCCCS program;
- (c) promoting access to health care for residents of the city of Tucson, including low-income, uninsured and otherwise vulnerable populations, by ensuring the financial stability and viability of acute care hospital systems in the city; and
- (d) promoting economic development and protecting and expanding jobs in the health sector and related fields within the city of Tucson.

(Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1201. Definitions.

For the purposes of this article only, the following definitions shall apply:

Access to care fund means the fund established pursuant to section 19-1205.

Access to care fund remainder (ATC fund remainder) means the amount remaining in the access to care fund after reservation of the administrative costs pursuant to section 19-1225(a).

Access to care program means the program consisting of the ATC tax, the uncompensated care payments, and related expanded AHCCCS coverage, to be established by AHCCCS and approved by CMS.

Access to care tax (ATC tax) means the tax imposed pursuant to section 19-1210.

Administrative costs means the costs to the tax collector of collecting, administering, enforcing and transferring the ATC tax, which may include: time, materials, overhead, and litigation costs.

AHCCCS means the Arizona health care cost containment system, an agency of the state, which administers the Medicaid program in Arizona under Title XIX of the Social Security Act in Arizona.

CFR means the Code of Federal Regulations.

CMS means the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, a federal agency within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

Coverage amount means an amount specified by AHCCCS to pay for the non-federal share of the expanded coverage that is part of the access to care program.

Delinquency date means the day after the due date.

Due date means that day that is thirty (30) days prior to the end of each quarter during the UC payment period, unless otherwise specified pursuant to section 19-1215(e).

Effective date means thirty (30) days after the date of passage of this article.

Gross patient revenue means gross charges for inpatient and outpatient hospital services calculated pursuant to section 19-1210.

Medicare cost report means the hospital cost report required for hospitals participating in the Medicare program under title XVIII of the SSA, using CMS form 2552-96.

Non-federal share means the portion of AHCCCS expenditures that are not reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to section 1903 of the SSA and are required to be paid for from state or local sources, pursuant to section 1902(a)(2) of the SSA.

Participating hospital means a health care institution located in the city of Tucson that is licensed as a hospital by the Arizona department of health services under A.R.S. title 36, chapter 4, article 2.

Quarter means a three (3) month period from January to March, April to June, July to September, or October to December.

Safety net care pool means the funding pool established pursuant to the AHCCCS demonstration project authorized under section 1115 of the SSA.

Shortfall amount means the amount of any ATC tax payment that a participating hospital owes but does not pay by the due date.

SSA means the Social Security Act.

Transfer date means the date that is fifteen (15) days prior to the end of each quarter during the UC payment period, unless AHCCCS specifies a different date, for transfer of funds from the city to AHCCCS pursuant to section 19-1225.

Transfer funds means the funds to be transferred to AHCCCS as specified in section 19-1225(b).

Uncompensated care payments means payments, to be administered by AHCCCS and approved by CMS, to participating hospitals to reimburse some or all of their uncompensated care costs of treating AHCCCS and uninsured patients.

UC payment period means the period beginning on the first day of the period for which CMS approves uncompensated care payments for participating hospitals and ending on the last day of the period for which AHCCCS is authorized under state law and by CMS to make uncompensated care payments to participating hospitals. UC payment transfer amount means the ATC fund remainder minus the coverage amount, to be used to pay for the non-federal share of uncompensated care payments to participating hospitals for the current quarter, except that the UC payment transfer amount shall not exceed the amount specified by AHCCCS as required to fund uncompensated care payments for the quarter.

(Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1205. Creation of access to care fund.

- (a) An access to care fund is created as a restricted subfund within the city. The fund shall be used to account for the access to care program monies and shall contain only the following:
 - (1) proceeds from ATC tax payments;
 - (2) penalties and interest for late ATC tax payments; and
 - (3) monies repaid to the city by AHCCCS in connection with the ATC tax or the uncompensated care payments.
- (b) No monies in the access to care fund shall transfer to, revert to, or lapse into any other fund, including the city general fund, except the amounts for administrative costs as provided for in section 19-1220(a) and amounts from penalties and interest as provided for in section 19-1220(e). (Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1210. Imposition of access to care tax and rate.

- (a) As of the effective date, there is hereby levied and imposed an ATC tax of not more than two percent (2.0%) of the gross patient revenue on participating hospitals. If the maximum allowable tax rate under federal law is reduced such that the ATC tax exceeds such maximum rate, the rate shall be automatically reduced to the maximum allowable rate.
- (b) Gross patient revenue is calculated from Medicare cost report as the sum of: worksheet g-2 column 1, lines 1, 2, 3, 4, 16, 18, and 19 and worksheet g-2 column 2, lines 18 and 19.

§ 19-1210 TUCSON CODE

(c) All data required to calculate the ATC tax and its application shall be derived from the hospital Medicare cost reports for the hospital fiscal year ending between January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011. (Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1215. Collection of tax.

- (a) Except as specified in subsection (e) and section 19-1235, the ATC tax shall be due and payable on the due date on a quarterly basis with a tax payment for each quarter within the UC payment period. Each tax payment shall equal one-fourth (1/4) of the total amount calculated pursuant to section 19-1210(a), except that the tax payment amount shall be prorated if the UC payment period begins on a day other than the first day of a quarter or ends on a day other than the last day of a quarter, based on the number of days in such quarter that are within the UC payment period.
- (b) If the UC payment period is longer than one (1) year, additional quarterly tax payments shall be due, calculated in the manner specified in subsection (a).
- (c) Each participating hospital shall file an ATC tax form with the city in such form and on such date as the tax collector shall specify, providing the data required to determine the amount of the ATC tax payment due. The tax collector may require the tax form to be submitted prior to the date on which all conditions specified in section 19-1235 have occurred.
- (d) If any participating hospital fails to remit the full amount of the tax payment owed by the due date, the tax collector shall promptly notify the participating hospital of the shortfall amount. The participating hospital shall remit to the tax collector forthwith the shortfall amount along with penalties and interest due pursuant to section 19-1250.
- (e) The tax collector shall adjust the due date(s) for any ATC tax payments due within the UC payment period prior to CMS approval as necessary to implement the access to care program as soon as practicable after CMS approval described in section 19-1235 and as agreed to with AHCCCS. Such adjustment may include collecting amounts accrued for quarters prior to CMS approval in more than one installment, allowing for AHCCCS to make uncompensated care payments to the hospitals prior to collecting subsequent installments. The tax collector

shall provide written notice to the participating hospitals indicating the due date(s) for the applicable tax payments at least five (5) days prior to such due date(s). To the extent permitted by the transfer schedule agreed to with AHCCCS, the tax collector shall not require payment for more than two (2) quarters within one (1) two (2) week period.

(f) The tax collector shall account for all ATC tax payments and all shortfall amounts remitted pursuant to subsection (d) in the access to care fund. (Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1220. Use of access to care tax fund.

Monies in the access to care fund may be utilized for the following purposes:

- (a) up to seven thousand six hundred and fifty dollars (\$7,650.00) of the collected tax payments each quarter may be used by the city to cover the administrative costs. Such amount may be increased by the city upon written notice to the participating hospitals thirty (30) days prior to the next transfer date if the city incurs unanticipated costs including costs for administration, litigation or bankruptcy proceedings related to the tax.
- (b) to transfer funds to AHCCCS pursuant to section 19-1225 and an intergovernmental agreement for the purpose of providing local funding for the non-federal share of:
 - (1) uncompensated care payments to participating hospitals; and
 - (2) expanded health care coverage to individuals through AHCCCS.
- (c) to refund to participating hospitals any ATC tax overpayment or amounts otherwise collected in error;
- (d) to refund to participating hospitals pursuant to section 19-1245 any amounts repaid by AHCCCS to the tax collector after recoupment of uncompensated care payments funded by tax proceeds transferred by the city, including tax proceeds transferred as for coverage amounts pursuant to section

19-1225(b) but not used for such purposes; and

(e) with respect only to penalties and interest collected pursuant to section 19-1250, to transfer to the city's general fund to be used for any city-authorized purpose or any budgeted purpose consistent with the general fund rules.

(Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1225. Transfer to AHCCCS.

- (a) From the ATC tax payments collected each quarter, the tax collector shall retain the administrative costs
- (b) From the ATC fund remainder, the tax collector shall transfer to AHCCCS each quarter on the transfer date the transfer funds, except as provided under subsections (c) or (d). The transfer funds are equal to the sum of the coverage amount plus the UC payment transfer amount.
 - (1) The coverage amount means an amount specified by AHCCCS to pay for the non-federal share of the expanded coverage that is part of the access to care program; and
 - (2) The UC payment transfer amount is defined under section 19-1201.
- (c) Under no circumstances shall the tax collector be required to transfer a total amount of transfer funds greater than the ATC fund remainder. If the transfer funds required under subsection (b) exceed the fund remainder, the UC payment transfer amount shall be reduced such that the amount of the transfer funds equals the ATC fund remainder.
- (d) In the event that the ATC fund remainder is greater than the transfer funds such that there are amounts remaining in the fund after a quarterly transfer, the tax collector shall return to the participating hospitals within fifteen (15) days after the transfer date their pro rata share of the ATC fund remainder based on the ATC quarterly tax amounts paid under section 19-1215(a). The pro-rata share shall be based on the prior quarter. Additionally, in the event a participating hospital owes the tax collector monies

for the previous or current quarter, the tax collector shall offset that participating hospital's pro-rata share by the amount owed.

(e) In the event that a participating hospital owes a shortfall amount pursuant to section 19-1215(d), the tax collector shall not transfer to AHCCCS any such shortfall amounts paid until ninety-five (95) business days after receipt of the shortfall amount from the participating hospital. The tax collector shall transfer shortfall amounts to AHCCCS on the next transfer date after the ninety-five (95) day period along with the transfer funds for the then-applicable quarter. In the case of shortfall amounts from the last ATC tax payment owed before the ATC tax terminates, the tax collector shall transfer the shortfall amounts within fifteen (15) days after the ninety-five (95) day period. (Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1230. No impact on patients or payers.

Participating hospitals shall not pass the cost of the tax on to patients or third party payers liable to pay for the care on a patient's behalf. (Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1235. Requirements for implementation.

The tax shall not be due or payable unless and until all of the following occurs:

- (a) CMS approves the uncompensated care payments and the ATC tax; and
- (b) AHCCCS agrees to return to the city the non-federal share of any uncompensated care payments recouped by AHCCCS from participating hospitals, unless such recouped payments are required for coverage amounts, and funds transferred for coverage as specified under the ordinance but unused for this purpose;
- (c) the city enters into an intergovernmental agreement with AHCCCS.
- (d) the municipal tax code commission approves the ATC tax.

(Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Supp. No. 101 1790.1

§ 19-1240 TUCSON CODE

Sec. 19-1240. Termination.

- (a) The ATC tax shall terminate on the earliest of:
 - (1) the date on which AHCCCS' authorization to make uncompensated care payments to participating hospitals ends; or
 - (2) the date on which AHCCCS' authorization to accept city funds for the non-federal share of AHCCCS payments expires; or
 - (3) December 31, 2013.
- (b) The ATC tax shall terminate prior to the date in subsection (a) upon any of the following conditions:
 - (1) the ATC tax is determined not to be a permissible source of non-federal share funding; or
 - (2) the ATC tax is otherwise determined to be unlawful under city, state or federal law; or
 - (3) a statewide hospital tax or other assessment is adopted and takes effect.

(Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1245. Impact of termination or recoupment.

- (a) In the event that AHCCCS refunds all or part of any transfers made to it pursuant to section 19-1225(b), the city shall return to the participating hospitals, within fifteen (15) days of return of the funds from AHCCCS, their pro rata share of the returned funds based on ATC tax amounts paid under section 19-1210.
- (b) In event that the ATC tax terminates under section 19-1240, the tax collector shall refund to each participating hospital within fifteen (15) days of termination the pro rata portion of any monies remaining in the ATC fund that have not been spent or irrevocably allocated for their designated purposes. (Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1250. Interest and penalties.

- (a) In the event a participating hospital owes a shortfall amount to the tax collector pursuant to section 19-1215(d), the participating hospital must pay interest on such shortfall amount from the delinquency date until it is remitted to the tax collector. The interest rate shall be determined pursuant to section 19-540.
- (b) In addition to interest being assessed under subsection (a), any participating hospital that fails to pay any of the ATC tax imposed by this article which were due or found to be due before the delinquency date shall be subject to and shall pay two percent (2%) civil penalties on the shortfall amount.
- (c) Penalties provided for under section 19-540 are not applicable.
- (d) Penalties and interest imposed by this section are due and payable upon notice by the tax collector. (Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Sec. 19-1255. Examination of books and records; failure to provide records.

- (a) The tax collector and the participating hospitals shall have all the rights and obligations as stated in section 19-555.
- (b) Nothing in this article may be read as a waiver of any rights the tax collector may have under the code or by city charter with regards to the ability to enforce and/or collect all monies owed by the participating hospitals except where expressly stated.
- (c) All other provisions in the code or city charter are applicable unless expressly stated otherwise.

(Ord. No. 11104, § 1, 8-6-13)

Supp. No. 101 1790.2

Sec. 20-175. Stop sign required at each intersection with through street.

Whenever any provision of this Code or any ordinance of the city designates and describes a through street, it shall be the duty of the traffic engineer to place and maintain a stop sign on each and every street intersecting such through street or intersecting that portion thereof described and designated as such by any ordinance of the city. (1953 Code, ch. 17, § 94)

Sec. 20-176. Traffic engineer to designate hazardous intersections for "stop."

The traffic engineer is hereby authorized to determine and designate intersections where particular hazard exists upon other than through streets and to determine whether vehicles shall stop at one (1) or more entrances to any such intersections, and shall erect a "stop" sign at every such place where a stop is required.

(1953 Code, ch. 17, § 95; Ord. No. 1941, § 1, 8-17-59)

Sec. 20-176.1. Traffic to stop at intersection when traffic signals are out of service.

When an intersection traffic signal is out of service for any reason, all vehicles shall come to a complete stop upon any approaching roadway at any such intersection and shall proceed only when safe to do so after yielding to any vehicle on the right, or to any vehicle or pedestrian lawfully within the intersection. This procedure shall be in effect until a traffic or police officer establishes intersection point control.

(Ord. No. 7332, § 1, 1-2-90)

Sec. 20-177. Traffic engineer to designate hazardous intersections for "yield".

The traffic engineer is hereby authorized to determine and designate intersections where a particular hazard exists and to determine whether vehicles on one of the intersecting streets shall yield the right-of-way to vehicles on the other street or streets and to erect a "yield right-of-way" sign at every place where such a sign is needed.

(1953 Code, ch. 17, § 95; Ord. No. 1941, § 1, 8-17-59) State law reference – Location, specifications for stop signs. A.R.S. § 28-855.

Sec. 20-178. Reserved.

Editor's note – Section 20-178, requiring obedience to yield right-of-way signs, derived from the 1953 Code, ch. 17, § 96, and Ord. No. 1941, § 2, adopted Aug. 17, 1959, was repealed by § 1 of Ord. No. 5931, adopted Dec. 19, 1983.

Sec. 20-179. One-way streets and alleys.

Upon those streets and parts of streets and in those alleys described by ordinance, vehicular traffic shall move only in the indicated direction when signs indicating the direction of traffic are erected and maintained at every intersection where movement in the opposite direction is prohibited. Three (3) copies of current ordinances designating the streets and alleys governed by this section shall be kept on file by the city clerk.

- (1) West on the east-west alley immediately north of the Mission Village apartments at 7001 East Golf Links Road and between the drainageway east to the western property line of the shopping center.
- (2) East on the east-west alley between Chantilly Avenue and Van Buren Avenue and between Broadway Boulevard and Twelfth Street.
- (3) North on the alley immediately east of Alamo Wash between the Monterey Village Shopping Center and Hawthorne Street.
- (4) East on the alley immediately south of the Monterey Village Shopping Center between the Alamo Wash and Rook Avenue.
- (5) East on the east-west alley between Congress Street and Pennington Street, connecting Sixth Avenue and Scott Avenue.
- (6) West on the east-west alley between Congress Street and Broadway Boulevard, connecting Sixth Avenue and Scott Avenue.
- (7) West on the east-west alley between 3rd and 4th Avenues and between 24th and 25th Streets.
- (8) Northeast on the northeast-southwest alley between Princeton Drive and Rutgers Place from Lehigh Drive east to the north-south alleyway.

§ 20-179 TUCSON CODE

- (9) West on Alameda Street from Toole Avenue-Sixth Avenue intersection to Church Avenue.
- (10) South on Arizona Avenue from Thirteenth Street to Fourteenth Street.
- (11) East on Broadway Boulevard between the west line of the Broadway Boulevard underpass and the east line of the intersection of Granada Avenue and Broadway Boulevard.
- (12) West on Adams Street from approximately 150 feet west of Camilla Boulevard to Camilla Boulevard.
- (13) West on Congress Street from Herbert Avenue-Toole Avenue intersection to Broadway Boulevard-Granada Avenue intersection.
- (14) West on Eighth Street from Euclid Avenue to Third Avenue. City of Tucson Solid Waste vehicles exempt between the hours of 5:30 a.m. to 7:30 a.m.
- (15) North on El Paso Avenue from Cushing Street to Simpson Street.
- (16) North on Fifth Avenue from Twelfth Street to Thirteenth Street.
- (17) North on Forgeus Avenue from Thirty-Sixth Street to Forgeus Stravenue.
- (18) South on Herbert Avenue from Sixth Street to Eighth Street.
- (19) South on Herbert Avenue from Fifth Street to 215 feet south of Fifth Street.
- (20) North on Hoff Avenue from Eighth Street to Fifth Street.
- (21) South on the southbound Kino Parkway onramp (Ramp A) from Twenty-Second Street.
- (22) North on the northbound Kino Parkway offramp (Ramp B) to Twenty-Second Street.

- (23) South on the southbound Kino Parkway off-ramp (Ramp C) to Twenty-Second Street.
- (24) North on the northbound Kino Parkway onramp (Ramp D) from Twenty-Second Street.
- (25) South on Meyer Avenue from Eighteenth Street to Twenty-Second Street.
- (26) East on Pennington Street from Congress Street to Scott Avenue.
- (27) North on Rubio Avenue from Nineteenth Street to Eighteenth Street.
- (28) South on Scott Avenue from McCormick Street to Fourteenth Street.
- (29) East on Sequoyah Street between Forgeus Avenue and Treat Avenue.
- (30) West on Simpson Street from Stone Avenue to Meyer Avenue.
- (31) East on Sixth Street between Country Club Road and the west end of Fifth-Sixth Street transition.
- (32) Speedway Boulevard underpass frontage roads: East of Union Pacific Railroad, westbound on north frontage road to road connecting north frontage road with south frontage road, south on this connecting road to south frontage road, east on south frontage road to end of frontage road; west of Union Pacific Railroad, east on south frontage road to road connecting south frontage road with north frontage road, north on this connecting road to north frontage road, west on north frontage road to end of frontage road.
- (33) South on Stone Avenue from the south line of the intersection of Stone Avenue, Toole Avenue and Franklin Street to the north line of Broadway Boulevard.
- (34) Northwest on Toole Avenue from Broadway to its intersection with Fourth Avenue.

(1953 Code, ch. 17, § 98; Ord. No. 1924, § 3, 7-6-59; Ord. No. 3653, § 1, 1-24-72; Ord. No. 3753, § 1, 12-13-71; Ord. No. 4003, § 1, 4-2-73; Ord. No. 4132, § 1, 2-19-74; Ord. No. 4150, § 2, 6-21-76; Ord. No. 4275, § 1, 1-20-75; Ord. No. 5050, § 1, 10-15-79; Ord. No. 6120 § 1, 11-19-84; Ord. No. 6565, § 1, 11-3-86; Ord. No. 6590, §§ 1 and 2, 12-8-86; Ord. No. 6705, §§ 1 and 2, 5-18-87; Ord. No. 6797, §§ 1 and 2, 9-21-87; Ord. No. 6950, §§ 1 and 2, 5-16-88; Ord. No. 6974, §§ 1 and 2, 6-6-88; Ord. No. 7066, §§ 1 and 2, 10-17-88; Ord. No. 7080, §§ 1 and 2, 10-24-88; Ord. No. 7137, §§ 1 and 2, 2-6-89; Ord. No. 7251, §§ 1 and 2, 8-7-89; Ord. No. 7442, §§ 1 and 2, 7-2-90; Ord. No. 7484, §§ 1 and 2, 9-17-90; Ord. No. 7542, §§ 1 and 2, 1-7-91; Ord. No. 7750, §§ 1 and 2, 1-13-92; Ord. No. 7903, § 2, 9-14-92; Ord. No. 7914, § 2, 10-5-92; Ord. No. 7972, §§ 1 and 2, 1-11-93; Ord. No. 7979, §§ 1 and 2, 2-1-93; Ord. No. 8342, § 2, 8-1-94; Ord. No. 8687, § 2, 5-6-96; Ord. No. 8788, §§ 1 and 2, 12-16-96; Ord. No. 8927, §§ 1 and 2, 9-2-97; Ord. No. 9133, § 2, 10-5-98; Ord. No. 9435, § 2, 8-7-00; Ord. No. 9760, § 2, 9-3-02; Ord. No. 10181, § 1, 8-2-05; Ord. No. 10940, § 1, 10-25-11; Ord. No. 11091, § 2, 7-9-13)

Secs. 20-180 – 20-199. Reserved.

ARTICLE VII. STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING*

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY

Sec. 20-200. Unlawful parking prohibited; classification; parking defined; parties liable; applicability of regulations; continuous violations; mandatory fines and fees; community service.

- (a) Classification. Violation of any provision of this article which regulates the time, place, or method of parking shall constitute a civil infraction.
- (b) *Definition*. Parking means the standing of a vehicle, whether occupied or not.

- (c) Parties liable. The owner(s) of the vehicle and the person who parked or placed the vehicle where the violation occurred shall be jointly and individually liable for the violation and for the fine and fees prescribed therefor.
- (d) Applicability of regulations. The provisions of this article prohibiting the standing or parking of a vehicle shall apply at all times or at those times herein specified or as indicated on official signs except when it is necessary to stop a vehicle to avoid conflict with other traffic, or in compliance with the directions of a police officer or official traffic-control device.
- (e) Continuous violations. Where parking is time restricted, each full time period the vehicle is unlawfully parked shall constitute a separate violation. In all other cases, each day the violation continues shall constitute a separate offense.
- (f) Mandatory fines and fees. Unless otherwise specifically provided by this article, the fines and fees for violating any provision of this article shall be mandatory, no part of which may be suspended or waived by the court.
- (g) Community service. Community service work may be substituted for fines and fees in accordance with section 1-8(4) of this Code. (Ord. No. 9196, § 1, 1-25-99; Ord. No. 10418, § 3, 6-12-07)

Sec. 20-201. Reserved.

Editor's note – Ord. No. 9492, § 3, adopted Nov. 27, 2000, repealed § 20-201, which pertained to administrative enforcement fee. See the Code Comparative Table.

Sec. 20-202. Prima facie evidence of parking infraction.

No civil infraction may be established except upon proof by a preponderance of the evidence; provided, however, that a parking violation notice, or copy thereof, issued in accordance with this chapter and the Local Rules of Practice and Procedure in City Court Civil Proceedings shall be prima facie evidence thereof and shall be admissible in any judicial or administrative proceeding as to the correctness of the facts specified therein.

(Ord. No. 9196, § 1, 1-25-99)

^{*}Editor's note – Ord. No. 9196, § 1, adopted Jan. 25, 1999, repealed the former Art. VII, §§ 20-193 – 20-277, which pertained to stopping, standing and parking, and enacted a new Art. VII, §§ 20-200 – 20-282 to read as herein set out. For more information, see the Code Comparative Table.

§ 20-203 TUCSON CODE

Sec. 20-203. Failure to respond to citation; default fee; booting and impounding vehicle authorized, booting and impound fees; damages to boot.

- (a) Arizona registered vehicles. When a citation is issued to a vehicle registered within the State of Arizona, the court shall within seven (7) working days send a citation letter to the owner address on file with the Arizona Department of Motor Vehicles advising the owner of the citation and containing the date, time, and location of the violation as well as the vehicle description and violation description; or a duplicate copy of the citation.
- (b) [Failure to respond.] If the owner or operator of the vehicle involved in a civil parking violation or infraction fails to respond within thirty (30) calendar days from the day the citation was issued by one (1) of the prescribed methods in Rule 7 of the Local Rules of Practice and Procedure in City Court Civil Proceedings, a default fee pursuant to section 8-6.7 shall be assessed and the court shall within seven (7) working days of the default date send a default letter to the owner address on file with the Arizona Department of Motor Vehicles, advising the owner that the citation is in default and that the vehicle may be subject to boot or impoundment as set forth in subsection (d).
- (c) Foreign registered vehicles. If the owner or operator of the vehicle, registered in a state or jurisdiction other than Arizona, involved in a civil parking violation or infraction fails to respond within thirty (30) calendar days from the day the citation was issued by one (1) of the prescribed methods in Rule 7 of the Local Rules of Practice and Procedure in City Court Civil Proceedings, a default fee pursuant to section 8-6.7 shall be assessed.
- (d) [Booting, impoundment.] In addition to actions taken under section 20-203(b) or (c) above, the citing authority may boot, impound or cause to be booted or impounded any motor vehicle owned by a person who has three (3) or more unpaid civil parking infractions or has failed to respond to the civil parking infractions as set forth in section 20-203(b) or (c), giving notice that there shall be a hearing before a limited special magistrate within forty-eight (48) hours of the booting or impoundment, excluding weekends and holidays. The owner of the vehicle which was

booted or impounded may post a bond in the amount of the booting and/or impound fees, damages or replacement cost of the boot if any, and

CODE COMPARATIVE TABLE – SUBSEQUENT ORDINANCES

Ordinance Number	Date	Section	Disposition
11042	12-18-12	1	6-34
		2	6-38
		3	6-40
		4	6-66
		5	6-84
		6	6-124
		7	6-164
		8	6-167
11056	3-19-13	1	15-1
		2	15-60
11057	3-27-13	1	7A-21
		2	11-30
		3	28-138
11062	3-27-13 (eff. 7-1-13)	1	22-30
		2	22-30
		3	22-34
11063	3-27-13	1	20-1
		2	20-260
		3	20-277
11071	5-21-13 (eff. 7-1-13)	1	22-95
11072	5-21-13 (eff. 7-1-13)	1	27-16
			27-16.2
		2	27-30
			27-35
			27-37
			27-41
			27-43
			27-48
			27-50
			27-51
440-2		3	27-86
11073	5-21-13 (eff. 7-1-13)	1	27-32.1
			27-33
11075	5 01 12 (66 5 1 12)	-	27-34
11075	5-21-13 (eff. 7-1-13)	5	10-31 (note)
		6	10-31(7) (note)
			10-31(8) (note)
			10-33 (note)
			10-33.1 (note) 10-34 (note)
			10-34 (note) 10-34.1 (note)
			10-34.1 (note) 10-35 (note)
			10-33 (note) 10-48 (note)
			10-48 (note) 10-49 (note)
			10-49 (note) 10-52 (note)
			10-52 (note) 10-53 (note)
			10-53 (note) 10-53.1 (note)
			10-33.1 (11016)

Supp. No. 101 3802.19

Ordinance Number	Date	Section	Disposition
11075 (Cont.)		6	10-53.2 (note)
,			10-53.3 (note)
			10-53.4 (note)
			10-53.5 (note)
11076	5-29-13	2	3-11
		3	3-51
			3-53
			3-58
			Added 3-59
			Rnbd $3-59 - 3-70$ as $3-60 - 3-71$
			3-71
		4	Rnbd 3-71 as 3-72
		5	Rnbd 3-72 – 3-74 as 3-73 – 3-75
		6	Rnbd $3-75 - 3-79$ as $3-76 - 3-80$
			3-77
			3-78
			3-79
			3-80
		7	Rnbd $3-80-3-82$ as $3-81-3-83$
		,	3-81
			3-82
			3-83
11081	5-29-13	1	Added 11-56
11082	5-29-13	1	2-18
		2	2-19
		3	2-22
11087	6-18-13 (eff. 7-20-13)	1	15-16.8
	(2	15-32.5
		3	15-33.2
		4	15-34.7
		•	15-34.8
11088	6-18-13 (eff. 7-19-13)	1	17-70
	(17-71
			17-72
			17-73
			17-74
			17-75
			17-76
			17-77
		2	Added 17-78
11089	7-9-13	1 (Exh. A)	6-38
11091	7-9-13	2	20-179
11104	8-6-13		Added 19-1200 – 19-1255
11111	9-24-13	1	8-2.2
	, 2, 15	-	0 2.2

Supp. No. 101 3802.20

CODE INDEX

	Section		Section
A		ADULT ENTERTAINMENT ENTERPRISES AND ESTABLISHMENTS (Cont'd.)	
ABANDONMENT		Revocation	
Abandoned signs, removal of	3-103 et seq.	Grounds	7-215 7-216
Abandoned streets, alleys, sale of	25-61	Massage establishments	7-130 et seq.
Ordinances not affected by Code. See the	20 01	Place of business	7-213
adopting ordinance in the preliminary		Purpose	7-206
pages found at beginning of this volume		Records and reports required	7-214
		Unlawful activities	7-217
ABATEMENT		Violations and penalties, minimum penalty,	
Failure to obey abatement order	11-122	subsequent convictions	7-218
Sign code, after court order, by the city	3-110		
		ADULT MAJOR SPORTS	
ACCESS TO CARE		Parks and recreation, adult major sports	21-9
Program	19-1200 et seq.		
		ADVERTISING, ADVERTISERS	
ACCIDENTS		Auction advertisements	7-16
Aid to animals struck by vehicles	4-5	Handbills, posting prohibited	16-36
Motor vehicle	20-44 et seq.	Parks and recreation, advertising regulations.	21-3(6)
See: MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC		Privilege and excise taxes. See: LICENSES AND PRIVILEGE TAXES	
ADDRESS NUMBERING		Signs	3-1 et seq.
Streets and sidewalks, system established	25-63 et seg.	See: SIGN CODE	
See: STREETS AND SIDEWALKS	1	Swap meets	7-201 et seq.
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE			
Administrative code for buildings, adopted	6-1 et seq.	AGE CONSIDERATION	
See: BUILDING CODE		Civil rights, discrimination, affirmative action	
		programs.	17-0 et seq.
ADULT CARE HOMES AND FACILITIES		See: DISCRIMINATION	4 02 2
Adult care licenses		Dog licenses, fees for elderly persons; rebates.	4-82.2
Annual fee	7-223	Park programs re senior trip programs	21-13.2
Application	7-220	Sun Tran bus system, elderly eligibility and prohibited activity	2-18
Inspection	7-221	promoted activity	2-10
Required		AID	
Special requirements		Failure to aid animals struck by vehicles	4-5
Violations	7-224	randre to aid animals struck by vehicles	4-3
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT ENTERPRISES AND ESTABLISHMENTS		AIR FORCE BASE. See: DAVIS MONTHAN AIR FORCE BASE	
Definitions	7-207	AIR GUNS	
Exempt activities	7-208	Shooting or discharging	11-1
Intent	7-206		11 1
Annual renewal	7-209	AIR TRANSPORTATION	
Application; hearing; appeal	7-210	Air Force Base, Davis Monthan, privilege and	10.200
Contents	7-211	excise taxes, provisions re	19-290
Denial, grounds for	7-212	Privilege and excise taxes, transporting for hire.	19-475
Expiration	7-209	ALADM COMPANIVI ICENCES	
Fees	7-210	ALARM COMPANY LICENSES	7 440
Grounds for denial	7-212	Applicability.	7-449 7-450
Nontransferable	7-213	Definitions	/-430
Place of business	7-213	License	7 151
Records and reports required	7-214	Alarm agent applications	7-454
Renewal procedure	7-211	Background investigation; fingerprints	7-453 7-455
Reports required	7-214	Fees: display of licenses	7-455 7-456

	Section		Section
ALARM COMPANY LICENSES (Cont'd.)		ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES (Cont'd.)	
Issuance; grounds for denial; petition for		Loitering drinking establishments	11-17
review	7-458	See also herein: Drinking Establishments	
Renewal of license	7-457	Massage establishments; unlawful activities re.	7-144
Required	7-451	Nightclubs, bars, cabarets, taverns	
Suspension or revocation		Clothing requirements of certain female	
Application after denial, suspension,		entertainers and waitresses	11-25.1 et seq.
revocation	7-462	See: CLOTHING REQUIREMENTS	
Grounds	7-459	Parks and recreation. See also that subject	
Notice to reciprocal licensors	7-461	Consumption of malt beverages	21-8
Procedure; hearing	7-460	Privilege taxes	19-455
Termination, cancellation; notice	7-463	Prostitutes, furnishing intoxicants to,	
Types of licenses; reciprocity	7-452	consuming intoxicants in room occupied	
Violation	7-464	by	11-44, 11-45
		Soliciting or annoying customers in food and	
ALARM SYSTEMS		drink establishments	11-24
Alarm company licenses	7-449 et seq.	Underage drinking, permitting or encouraging.	11-39
Alarm user registration and fees	7-465 et seq.		
Automatic dialing and prerecorded message		ALLEYS	
alarm systems, certain, prohibition of	11-67	Motor vehicles and traffic. See also that subject	
ALARM USER REGISTRATION AND FEES		One-way streets and alleys	20-179
Activation for unauthorized purposes	7-468	Parking in alleys	20-273
Alarm administration	7-465		
Alarm business duties	7-466	AMERICAN INDIAN	
Alarm user registration	7-474	American Indian Awareness Days	10A-100
Alarm user awareness class	7-479	•	
Alarm user's and proprietor alarm owner	, .,,	AMERICAN LEGION	
duties	7-467	Veterans' affairs committee	10A-21 et seg.
Assessment petition	7-476	See: VETERANS' AFFAIRS	•
Automatic or prerecorded messages or signals.	7-470	COMMITTEE	
Confidentiality	7-471		
Excessive false alarms/failure to register	7-475	AMUSEMENTS	
Government immunity	7-472	Civil rights, discrimination, affirmative action	
Grace period.	7-473	programs	17-0 et seq.
Reinstatement.	7-478	See: DISCRIMINATION	
Shutting off after sounding alarm	7-469	Privilege and excise taxes	
Suspension of response	7- 4 07 7-477	Amusements, exhibitions and similar	
	///	activities	19-410
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES		AND, OR	
Drinking establishments		Definitions and rules of construction	1-2(1)
Allowing	11-18	Definitions and rules of construction	1-2(1)
Frequenting during hours closed	11-17	ANIMALS AND FOWL	
Loitering in	11-17	Accidents	
Privilege taxes	19-455		
Escorts and escort bureaus, unlawful acts re		Failure to render aid to animals struck by vehicles	4-5
alcoholic beverages	7-118	Animal suspected of rabies. See herein:	4- 3
Late night retail establishment regulations	7-410 et seq.	Diseased Animals	
See: LATE NIGHT RETAIL		Animal-drawn vehicles, applicability to traffic	
ESTABLISHMENTS		provisions	20-5
Library grounds, crimes on, prohibited		Apiaries, beekeeping	11-3
beverages	11-160(7)	Baby chickens, ducklings or young rabbits	11-3
Liquor and vending machine license tax	19-51 et seq.	Forbidden sale of; exceptions; penalties	4-8
See: LICENSES AND PRIVILEGES		Beekeeping, apiaries	11-3
TAXES		Deckeeping, apianes	11-3

CODE INDEX

	Section		Section
GOLD. See: PRECIOUS STONES, METALS		HANDICAPPED PERSONS	
		Civil rights, discrimination, affirmative action	15.0
GOLFING, GOLF COURSES		programs	17-0 et seq.
Parks and recreation	21 10 4	Commission on disability issues Creation	10A-75
City municipal golf courses	21-19 et seq. 21-3(5)	Functions.	10A-75
Coming, regulations relating to	21-3(3)	Limitations of powers	10A-70
GRADES		Membership composition	
Repairs and improvements in public rights-of-		Terms and qualifications	10A-77
way; sidewalks		Organization	10A-78
Grade and alignment standards	25-6, 25-8	Powers	
Sign Code, general requirements	3-33	Limitation	10A-79
CD A FERMI		Purposes	10A-76
GRAFFITI	16.20	Disabled American Veterans	104 21 4
Neighborhood preservation	16-30	Veterans' affairs committee	10A-21 et seq.
GRASS		COMMITTEE	
Street and sidewalk regulations re planting		Mobility-impaired city residence, paratransit	
within rights-of-way	25-52.1 et seq.	service fare eligibility and prohibited	
See: STREETS AND SIDEWALKS	•	activity	2-19
		See: TRANSIT SYSTEM	
GRAZING		Parking for individuals with physical	20, 220, 4
Livestock, large and dangerous animals,	4.00	disabilities	20-220 et seq.
grazing or pasturing in city	4-22	Sun Tran fixed route regularly scheduled bus	
See: ANIMALS AND FOWL		system; eligibility and prohibited activity.	2-18
GRILLS		See: TRANSIT SYSTEM	
Burning trash; permit requirement			
Not required for cooking devices	11-8	HAZARDOUS AND RADIOACTIVE	
1 2		MATERIALS	
GROUNDWATER CONSULTANT BOARD		Auctions and auctioneers	
Creation	27-66 et seq.	Hazardous substances defined, notices required of possession of	7-7
See: WATER AND SEWERS		See: AUCTIONS AND	, ,
CLDIG G FIRE L DAG AND WEADONG		AUCTIONEERS	
GUNS. See: FIREARMS AND WEAPONS		Operation of motor vehicles carrying	
GUTTERS		hazardous materials	13-13
Streets and sidewalks, keeping gutters and		Operations, suspension of	13-15
sidewalks clean by owners, occupants	25-56	Permits for transporting Denial, suspension or revocation of permit	13-10
See: STREETS AND SIDEWALKS		Appeal from	13-11
		Reporting requirements	13-14
GYMNASIUM		Restrictions on transportation	13-9
Fees		Solid waste collection; recycling, etc.	
Archer, Quincie Douglas, El Rio, Freedom, Northwest, Randolph, and Santa Rosa		Environmental services department	15-10.1 et seq.
Center use	21-14.1	See: ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES	
Clements, El Pueblo and Udall Center use.	21-14.2	DEPARTMENT	
		Spills or releases	12 14
Н		Reporting requirements	13-14 13-15
		Suspension of operations	13-13
HANDBALL COURTS		HAZARDS, TRAFFIC	
Parks and recreation, fees for handball courts.	21-11	Motor vehicles and traffic. See also that	
HANDDH I C		subject	
HANDBILLS Parks and recreation, commercial activities		Designating hazardous intersections for	
regulated	21-3(6)	Stop.	20-176
Posting of handbills prohibited	16-36	Yield	20-177
		Hazardous area adjacent to schools	20-274

	Section		Section
HEALTH AND SANITATION	~~~~	HORNS	
Adult care homes and facilities	7-219 et seq.	Rodeo parade, prohibition of certain items and activities and other parade events	11-69
Enforcing health, sanitation, food regulations; obstructing, resisting	2-15	HOSPITALS	
Health care/plans	2-13	Access to care program	10-1200 at sag
Adult care homes and facilities	7-219 et seq.	Adult care homes and facilities	
Civil unions	7-217 ct seq.	See: ADULT CARE HOMES AND	7-217 ct scq.
Rights of civil union partners	17-76	FACILITIES	
Group insurance and medical health plans.	22-78 et seq.		
See: PENSIONS, RETIREMENT AND GROUP INSURANCE	22 70 et seq.	HOTELS, ROOMING HOUSES, MOTELS Civil rights, discrimination, affirmative action	
Parks and recreation		programs	17-0 et seq.
Regulation of activities in areas adjacent to		See: DISCRIMINATION	
or affecting park	21-5	Escorts and escort bureaus, unlawful acts	7-118
Regulations relating to sanitation	21-3(3)	Exemption from late night retail establishment regulations	7-410
HEARINGS		Guest register required	7-441
Off-road operation of vehicle	11-70.1	False entries on	11-27
Pawnbrokers and secondhand dealers	7-97 et seq.	Definitions	7-440
See: PAWNBROKERS AND SECONDHAND DEALERS	•	Guest register required; guest identification required	7-441
Privilege and excise taxes, provisions re	19-570	Hearing upon suspension	7-445
Sign code advisory and appeals board		Limitation on consecutive rentals	7-442
Time for hearings; notice	3-130	Notification to licensee of violation by	
		employee	7-443
HISTORIC DISTRICTS		Operating on a suspended license	7-446
Sign districts.	3-81 et seq.	Suspension of business license; grounds;	7-444
See: SIGN CODE		penalties Privilege and excise taxes, provisions re	7 -444 19-444
		Soliciting passengers or baggage at hotels	11-53
HISTORICAL COMMISSION		Tax on hotels renting to transients	19-66 et seq.
Tucson-Pima County Historical Commission	104.1	See: LICENSES AND PRIVILEGES	17-00 ct scq.
Compensation	10A-1	TAXES	
Created	10A-1		
Expenses and expenditures	10A-2	HOUSING	
Functions.	10A-3	Building codes adopted, listing of	6-34 et seq.
Membership	10A-1 10A-1	See: BUILDING CODE	•
Purposes	10A-1 10A-3	Civil rights, discrimination, affirmative action	
Quorum	10A-3 10A-1	programs	17-0 et seq.
Rules and regulations	10A-1	See: DISCRIMINATION	
Terms.	10A-1	Fair housing	17-50 et seq.
Vacancies.	10A-1	See: FAIR HOUSING	
	10/11	Streets and sidewalks, address numbering system established	25-63 et seq.
HOGS		See: STREETS AND SIDEWALKS	
Livestock, large and dangerous animals		Toilets, installation of ultra-low-flush water	
Keeping prohibited; exception; maximum of three miniature pigs allowed per		closets in low income owner-occupied	27.10
household	4-26	housing	27-19
		HOUSING AND COMMUNITY	
HOMES AND FACILITIES		DEVELOPMENT	
Adult care homes and facilities	7-219 et seq.	Departmental divisions	10B-3
See: ADULT CARE HOMES AND		Established	10B-2
FACILITIES		Policy	
		Purposes and functions of department	10R_4